
 

1 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

 

AGENDA  
 

January 2022 
 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

Table of Contents 

SPECIAL CALL MEETING .......................................................................................................................................... 4 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 10, 2021 .............................................................................................................................. 4 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 2021 ................................................................................................................................... 7 

OLD BUSINESS: ...................................................................................................................................................... 7 

RE: APRIL 2021 CASE NO. 8 ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

CASE NO. 1 2015 HARRISON ST SE ....................................................................................................................... 23 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 24 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 25 

CASE NO. 2 416 HAY DR. APT E8 .......................................................................................................................... 26 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 27 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 28 

CASE NO. 3 1205 5TH SW APT D4 ......................................................................................................................... 29 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 30 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 31 

CASE NO. 4 406 11TH AV SW ................................................................................................................................. 32 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 33 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 34 

CASE NO. 5 1606 TOWER ST SE ............................................................................................................................ 35 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 36 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 37 

CASE NO. 6 1310 MORNINGSIDE CT SE................................................................................................................. 38 

QUESTIONNAIRE ..................................................................................................................................................... 39 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 40 

CASE NO. 7 1809 BELTLINE RD SW ....................................................................................................................... 41 

NARRATIVE PG. 1 ................................................................................................................................................. 42 

NARRATIVE PG. 2 ..................................................................................................................................................... 43 
CANOPY INSTALLATION........................................................................................................................................... 44 
SIDE ENTRY .............................................................................................................................................................. 45 
SITE PLAN ................................................................................................................................................................ 46 
PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 47 

CASE NO. 8 1119 8TH AV SE ................................................................................................................................... 49 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 50 
SLAB ........................................................................................................................................................................ 51 
ELEVATION .............................................................................................................................................................. 52 
ELEVATION .............................................................................................................................................................. 53 
ROOF PITCH ............................................................................................................................................................. 54 
COLUMN PLACEMENT ............................................................................................................................................. 55 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 56 

CASE NO. 9 1700 CARRIDALE ST. SW .................................................................................................................... 57 

PROPOSED SIGN ...................................................................................................................................................... 58 



 

3 

 

CURRENT VIEW ....................................................................................................................................................... 59 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 60 

CASE NO. 10 1209 COUNT MALLARD DR SE.......................................................................................................... 61 

SURVEY.................................................................................................................................................................... 62 
PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 63 
PICTURE .................................................................................................................................................................. 64 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 65 

CASE NO. 11 928 SIMS ST SW ............................................................................................................................... 66 

SURVEY ................................................................................................................................................................ 67 

BOUNDARY SURVEY ................................................................................................................................................ 68 
CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE ............................................................................................................................... 69 
CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE ............................................................................................................................... 70 
CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE ............................................................................................................................... 71 
MAP ........................................................................................................................................................................ 72 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 

 

SPECIAL CALL MEETING 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 10, 2021 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chair, Delayne Dean, Ms. Susana Salcido, Mr. Steven Thomas, 

         Rev. George Allen 

  

SUPERNUMERARIES:   None Present 

   

OTHERS PRESENT:   Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney  

         Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department 

          Mr. Tom Polk, Building Inspector 

         Mrs. Nancy Whiteside, Recorder 

 

Chairperson, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the council chambers on 

the 1st floor at City Hall.   

 

Mr. Tom Polk, Building Department, called the roll.   

 

CASE No. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Tony Hopkins for a determination as a use permitted on appeal for a 

temporary business pursuant to Section 25-113 and as defined in Article V, as amended and 

adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance to sell Christmas trees located at 103 2nd Av SE , property is 

located in a B-5 Central Business District. 

 

Mr. Tony Hopkins presented this case to the Board. Mr. Hopkins stated his name was Tony 

Hopkins and his address is 2310 Selma St. SW. 

 

Mr. Hopkins stated he was requesting permission to use the vacant lot located adjacent from the 

Brick Deli at the corner of Moulton St. and 2nd Av. SE. 

 

Chair Dean asked Mr. Hopkins the dates he would be selling the trees. 

 

Mr. Hopkins replied he would be selling the Christmas trees from the middle of November to 

December 18th or the 19th, 2021. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas verified from Mr. Hopkins that he had received an email from Mr. Tom Polk 

notating that a temporary business is required to have access to sanitary facilities. 

 

Mr. Hopkins replied he had received the email and he would provide a portable facility or that he 

does have access to local businesses for that purpose. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas reiterated to Mr. Hopkins that he needed to state what his plan was for this 

situation. 



 

5 

 

Mr. Hopkins stated his plan was to use the business that he has down the street. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas stated to Mr. Hopkins that he would need to provide written verification as 

to how he was going to handle this situation. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Mr. Hopkins where his business was located. 

 

Mr. Hopkins stated it was Civil Ax located up the street. 

 

Mr. Hopkins stated he had not thought having to provide any type of sanitary facilities, because 

he was not looking at people staying too long at the location, but does understand why it is a 

requirement. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas told Mr. Hopkins that he would need to present the plan of action and that it 

is a contingency for a temporary business in the City of Decatur.  

 

Chair, Dean told Mr. Hopkins he could try to get written approval from the Brick Deli if need be, 

and explained others have received permission from surrounding businesses under the same 

circumstances. 

 

Chair, Dean told Mr. Hopkins he would have to present back to the city what his definitive plan 

is for the situation. 

 

Mr. Hopkins stated he would probably get a portable facility as not to disturb other businesses. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye stated to Mr. Hopkins that would be the best way to proceed. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for further questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Tom Polk, Building Department, stated to Mr. Hopkins concerning the public using the 

facilities at Civil Ax that would not be allowable because that business as not been issued a 

certificate of occupation. 

 

Mr. Tom Polk, Building Department, stated to Mr. Hopkins that his signage would need to have 

a separate review and the electrical service would need to have a permit and inspections. 

 

Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Steven Thomas motion to approve this case with the condition Mr. Hopkins provides written 

information on how he is going to handle obtaining the bathroom facility. Mr. Larry Waye 

seconded the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

 

 



 

6 

 

CASE NO. 2 

   

Application and appeal of Eric Reynolds for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a handyman business located at 411 Clearview 

St SW, property is located in a R-2 Single-Family Residential District. 

 

 No one came forward to present the case when called. Mr. Steven Thomas motioned to postpone 

this case until the regular BOZA meeting scheduled for November 30, 2021. With a unanimous 

vote this motion carried. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 4:15 p.m. 

 

 

_________________________     

Chair, Delayne Dean 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

7 

 

MINUTES NOVEMBER 2021 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:   Chair, Delayne Dean, Mr. Collis Stevenson, Rev. George Allen 

 

COPIED TO:      Ms. Susana Salcido, Mr. Steven Thomas 

 

SUPERNUMERARIES:   Mr. Brad Townson, Mr. Larry Waye 

   

OTHERS PRESENT:   Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney  

         Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department 

          Mr. Bob Sims, Building Inspector 

         Mrs. Nancy Whiteside, Recorder 

 

Chairperson, Delayne Dean called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. in the council chambers on 

the 1st floor at City Hall.   

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, called the roll.   

 

The minutes from the October 2021 meeting were approved without any changes.  Mr. Collis 

Stevenson motioned to approve the minutes. Rev. George Allen seconded the motion. On a voice 

vote the motion carried.  

 

POINT OF INFORMATION: The rules and regulations of a home occupation were explained 

to each applicant requesting a home occupation. Each of the applicants acknowledged the rules 

and regulations were understood. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

 

Re: April 2021 CASE NO. 8 

 

Application and appeal of Fallon Michele Gatlin for a determination as a use permitted on appeal 

as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to operate an administrative office for a handyman business located at 4404 

Burningtree Mountain Cir. SE, property is located in a R-1 Single-Family Residential Zoning 

District. 

 

Fallon Michele Gatlin came forward to respond to the questions about the complaints received 

about this home occupation. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated her name was Fallon Michele Gatlin and her address is 4404 Burningtree 

Mountain Cir. SE. 

 

Chair Dean explained that in April 2021 Ms. Gatlin was approved to have a home occupation for 

a handy man business, Ms. Gatlin agreed. 

 

Chair, Dean explained that it was explained in detail what having a home occupation meant. 

 



 

8 

 

Chair, Dean stated, from the April 2021 minutes what Ms. Gatlin had stated her job platform 

would be. 

 

Chair Dean, explained that the complaints from neighbors indicate there is work being performed 

that is not within the guidelines of a home occupation. 

 

Chair, Dean stated pictures had been sent to the Board indicating more work is taking place than 

administration only, such as cabinets being built and removed and taken other places which does 

not fall within the rules for a home occupation. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Ms. Gatlin to clarify exactly, the work being completed at the home. 

Ms. Gatlin stated her husband is the handy man and her employee, and he does wood working as 

a hobby. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated renovations are being done to the home, which includes a lot of refurbishing 

cabinets and making new cabinets for themselves, family and friends. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated that her husband does all types of wood work in the garage.  

 

Ms. Gatlin stated the tools in their garage are all small, nothing industrial. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated they do not have any construction vehicles; they do have a pick up truck. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated any work being performed in the garage is cut off by 9 p.m.  

 

Ms. Gatlin stated there is not any mass production at their home. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated they do not build things and try to sell them. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated no customers come to the home. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated they do advertise but only as discussed in the first meeting when they obtain 

permission for the home occupation. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated there are no deliveries by big truck coming to the house. 

 

Ms. Gatlin asked where is the proof that this work they are doing is not for personal use or 

friends and family or things they may be taking to get professionally painted for their own use. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated during the April meeting the Board made the comment that they hoped people 

are not just peeking into your garage to see what you are doing. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated she feels since the April meeting they have been cautious to do things, even 

personal things, because the neighbors are watching them trying to find something that they have 

done wrong. 

 



 

9 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated she feels the neighbors are harassing them. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated the neighbors have not approached them asking them to stop working at an 

earlier time. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated she feels they are not doing anything wrong. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for questions from the Board. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Ms. Gatlin if she considers the work done at her house, in relation to the 

business, as she stated in the April meeting is strictly administrative office work operating out of 

one room in the home, Ms. Gatlin responded yes. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated there has been small things done completed at the home before it was taken to 

a client’s home. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated they are a small business trying to build the business, and want to be able to 

move to a large warehouse one day. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson asked Ms. Gatlin how often they are performing building related activities 

outside, for the business, Ms. Gatlin stated very little. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson asked Ms. Gatlin what the percentage of time is spent on personal projects 

outside versus business projects, Ms. Gatlin responded 80% of the time. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson asked Ms. Gatlin where all of these items were being placed. 

 

Ms. Gatlin named off all of the items Mr. Gatlin had made for the home. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for further questions from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. John Moore 4402 Burningtree Mountain Circle SE came forward.  

 

Mr. Moore stated he has lived at the residence for 11 years. 

 

Mr. Moore discussed his time in the military and learning about what the meaning of an 

ordinance is. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had received a letters from the city in March and again in November 

referencing the actions to be discussed about the neighbor’s at 4404 and that the letter 

encouraged the neighbors to share the information with other neighbors, and he did. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had not spoken to the Gatlin’s about the situation. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had various concerns in the March, April timeframe. 

 



 

10 

 

Mr. Moore stated several individuals came forward at the time in April to express their concerns 

about the home occupation, Mr. Moore did not he watched the live stream video from his home.  

 

Mr. Moore stated he understood that the home occupation to operate an administrative office in 

one room of their home for a  handyman business at 4402 Burningtree Mountain Circle was 

approved in April and he respected the decision of the Board.  

 

Mr. Moore stated the concerns that he and his neighbors expressed in April, through email and in 

person, had evolved into more than what was requested. 

 

Mr. Moore stated assurances given by the Board, if the neighbors had any concerns, those 

concerns could be reported and the concerns would be investigated.  

 

Mr. Moore stated he believed the home occupation has turned into more than a one room in the 

operation. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had pictures, presented to the Board, of cabinets being made and refinished. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had consulted legal and was told his property value could deteriorate. 

 

Mr. Moore presented the Board with more pictures he had taken from his driveway showing 

various material in the Gatlin’s driveway. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he could see work being performed on cabinets while he was working in his 

yard and paint fumes coming from the Gatlin’s home. 

 

Mr. Moore showed a picture from their website of the items that was being constructed. 

 

Mr. Moore discussed how he saw a commercial truck deliver materials to the home and how 

there were residual materials left out on the driveway. 

 

Mr. Moore discussed how their Facebook page shows different items being made at the home, 

and is posted on their page. 

 

Mr. Moore stated he had a sound recording of a sander operating at nighttime. 

 

Chair, Dean stated to Mr. Moore why they were here. 

 

Mr. Moore understood and explained he had given several examples and stated he felt it was out 

of the scope of  what was approved. 

 

Chair, Dean went over with Ms. Gatlin what they were approved to do, Ms. Gatlin agreed. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated some of those pictures were staged to help build the business. 

 



 

11 

 

Ms. Gatlin explained how they were able to use a large truck and how friends and family allowed 

them to use a few of the items they had refurbished for them on their Facebook page to help 

build the business. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Ms. Gatlin if she felt she was in compliance of a home occupation, Ms. Gatlin 

stated she felt like she was in compliance. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Asst. City Attorney told the Board, options that could be approved. 

 

The Board discussed amongst themselves. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson asked Ms. Gatlin if the work being done outside was work for private use, 

and then posted on Facebook as gifted. 

 

Ms. Gatlin stated individuals paid for the materials so they did not lose money but, they did not 

make any profit from them. 

 

Chair, Dean stated to Ms. Gatlin that it was not for her to say if she was telling the truth or not.  

 

Chair, Dean told Ms. Gatlin she had heard what the neighbors had to say and how they feel. 

 

Chair Dean, told Ms. Gatlin if work is for friends and family then that work should be contained 

to the inside of the garage.  

 

Chair, Dean stated she felt like the Board should keep things as they are. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye encouraged the Gatlin’s and Mr. Moore get together and talk, Ms. Gatlin 

agreed. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye stated that the Board could only take the word of Ms. Gatlin that the guidelines 

are being abided by, and that only an administrative office is being run out of the home and 

encouraged Ms. Gatlin to be sure that was so, Ms. Gatlin understood. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson reiterated to Ms. Gatlin she was approved for an administrative office and the 

point of this hearing is to protect the neighborhood. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson told Ms. Gatlin to make sure it does not look like someone is running a 

business out of their home.  

 

Mr. Brad Townson, told Ms. Gatlin she does not need people bringing things to their home, and 

whatever minimal work that is done should be kept inside of the garage, Ms. Gatlin understood. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson recommended that it should not look like anyone’s running a business out of 

the home regardless of what is being given away to friends or family or what’s being done to get 

an online presence up and running. 

 



 

12 

 

Mr. Brad Townson stated that this Board is to help keep residential neighborhoods a 

neighborhood while at the same time helping residents to be able to start a business. 

 

Chair, Dean asked the Board if they would vote on leaving things the way they were approve in 

April and for all in favor to say aye. On a unanimous vote it was approved to leave the ruling as 

it stands. 

 

CASE NO. 1  

   

Application and appeal of Eric Reynolds for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a handyman service located at 411 Clearview 

St SW, property is located in a R-2 Single Family Zoning District. 

 

Mr. Eric Reynolds presented this case to the Board. Mr. Reynolds stated his name was Eric 

Reynold and his address is 411 Clearview St. SW. Mr. Reynolds stated he would like to use one 

room in his home for administrative purposes for a handy man business. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified Mr. Reynolds understood the rules and regulations of a home 

occupation. Mr. Reynolds stated he understood all of the rules and regulations. 

 

There were no questions from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, recommended approval. 

 

Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Brad Townsend motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded 

the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 2  

   

Application and appeal of Belen Rodriguez for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a concrete business located at 1409 

Runnymeade Av. SW, property is located in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Ms. Belen Rodriguez presented this case to the Board. Ms. Rodriguez stated her name was Belen 

Rodriguez and her address was 1409 Runnymeade Av SW. Ms. Rodriguez stated she would like 

to use one room in her home for an administrative office for a concrete business. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Ms. Rodriguez about the type of equipment she would have at her home. 

 

Ms. Rodriguez stated the equipment that would be used will be rented at this time since the 

business is just getting started. 

 



 

13 

 

Mr. Larry Waye verified Ms. Rodriguez understood the rules and regulations of a home 

occupation, Ms. Rodriguez understood. 

 

Chair Dean for comments from the Board or the public. 

 

Mr. Jimmy Hester 1414 Runnymeade Av. SW spoke of how the neighborhoods have decreased 

in value and spoke of how residences should not be zoned business because, it devalues the 

neighborhood. Mr. Hester believes all businesses should performed in a business district not in 

any neighborhood. 

 

Ms. Ruth Kitty 1931 Woodmeade stated her family had lived in Decatur until transferred to 

another state and upon retirement moved back to Decatur. Ms. Kitty explained how her taxes had 

gone up because of improvement, that were made on her property and feels that taxes will not be 

going up anymore if there are businesses in the area.  

 

Ms. Kitty does not believe that the City of Decatur can be OK with property values decreasing. 

 

Ms. Dorothy Livingston 1408 Runnymeade Av SW. Ms. Livingston stated single family homes 

are zoned as a single family home and should stay that way and was making an appeal to the 

board to keep it that way. 

 

Chair, Dean verified again with Ms. Rodriguez that she was asking for an administrative office, 

Ms. Rodriguez agreed. 

 

Chair, Dean explained to Ms. Rodriguez that there should not be any evidence of a business 

being run out of the home, and no employees could report to the home, Ms. Rodriguez 

understood. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye reminded Ms. Rodriguez that there could not be any signage on the property, 

Ms. Rodriguez understood. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, told Ms. Rodriguez to try her hardest to keep the business 

inside her home and make sure there is no equipment, and that there is not a lot of people 

showing up on the property, Ms. Rodriguez understood. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, told Ms. Rodriguez that when the property start to 

deteriorate and complaints start coming in the complaints are investigated. Mr. Sims asked Ms. 

Rodriguez to keep  her neighbors happy. 

 

Mr. Lee Terry, Planning Department, had no comment. 

 

Mr. Collis Stevenson motioned to approve this case as submitted. Rev. George Allen seconded 

the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye thanked the neighbor’s for coming and expressing their concerns. He reminded 

the audience that if they see any evidence that more than a home occupation exists report it, and 



 

14 

 

it would be investigated. Mr. Waye stated home occupations have been around for many years 

and will be for years to come and this process is to help people start a business, but not to operate 

large equipment from the home. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

   

Application and appeal of Brittany Boyd for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a photography business located at 2009 

Crestview Dr. SE property is located in a R-1 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Ms. Jamie Howard presented this case to the Board representing Ms. Boyd.  

 

Ms. Howard stated she would be business partners with Ms. Boyd. 

 

Ms. Howard stated Ms. Boyd’s address would be used for the administrative office for the 

photography business. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Ms. Howard if she would be Ms. Boyd’s employee, Ms. Howard stated she 

would be Ms. Boyd’s business partner. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department, told Ms. Howard for a home occupation, a partnership 

has to be owned and operated by the person that lives in the house and a partner who lives in 

another place going to the other partner’s home to conduct business would not be allowed. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department stated Ms. Howard can present the case since she is 

listed on the application. The business cannot be in both of their names and operate as a home 

occupation.  

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department stated that Ms. Howard would have to work from a 

different location, and she could not report to work Ms. Boyd’s home. 

 

Chair, Dean asked Ms. Howard if she understood, Ms. Howard understood. 

 

Ms. Howard stated all of the work would be submitted on line so she could work from her home. 

 

Ms. Howard asked if they proceeded with the application would the business be considered a 

sole proprietorship, Mr. Chip Alexander replied it would be a home occupation, Ms. Howard 

understood. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Mr. Alexander if the business could be a LLC if the address is 2009 

Crestview. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department, stated that the person who lived at the house could 

establish the business as a LLC but if anyone else came to the house to work then that would be a 

violating the home occupation. 



 

15 

 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, stated that the only home occupation that allows employees 

is a home day care because it is required. 

 

Chair, Dean stated she could request the home occupation since she is listed as the representative 

for Ms. Boyd on the application, Ms. Howard understood. 

 

There was a discussion about how best to handle the situation. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson, stated Ms. Howard could do anything related to the business just not at Ms. 

Boyd’s residence, Mr. Alexander agreed. 

 

Ms. Howard stated that location is her brother’s home and she normally visits once a week. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson explained to Ms. Howard that she couldn’t be showing up at the location 

every day because it would look like she was an employee going to work everyday, Ms. Howard 

understood. 

 

Ms. Howard explained she would take the pictures and meet Ms. Boyd at a different location to 

give Ms. Boyd the memory card for processing. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department explained that how the business operates is not what this 

process is about. Mr. Alexander stated you can’t apply as a partnership it can only meet the 

definition if it is an individual. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye asked Ms. Howard if she wanted to continue and get the business license in Ms. 

Boyd’s name. 

 

Ms. Howard was confused how the taxes would be handled if she were to proceed with the 

application. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department, explained that either Ms. Howard or Ms. Boyd would then 

become an employee where a 1099 or a W-2 form would be issued each year based off of 

whatever work is being performed. 

 

Mr. Chip Alexander, Legal Department agreed with Mr. Sims but noted he was not an 

accountant. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye explained to Ms. Howard that there are places in Decatur designed to help small 

businesses get started and does not cost a lot of money. Mr. Waye told Ms. Howard about the 

entrepreneurial center located on 4th Av SE that may be able to help. 

 

Ms. Howard decided to go forward with the application as written. 

Mr. Brad Townson motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Larry Waye, seconded the 

motion. On a roll call vote the motion carried. 

 



 

16 

 

CASE NO. 4 

   

Application and appeal of Leilani Dickson for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an on-line business to sell clothing and accessories located at 1314 2nd Av. 

SW, property is located in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Ms. Leilani Dickson presented this case to the Board. Ms. Dickson stated her name was Leilani 

Dickson and her address was 1314 2nd Av. SW. Ms. Dickson stated she would like to use one 

room in her home for administrative purposes for an on-line business selling clothing through 

Shopify. 

 

Ms. Dickson stated she had heard and understood all of the rules and regulations of a home 

occupation. 

 

Chair, Dean, asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Collis Stevenson seconded the 

motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 5 

   

Application and appeal of Elias Francisco Gaspar for a determination as a use permitted on 

appeal as allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the 

Zoning Ordinance to operate a painting business located at 2612 Poole Av SW, property is 

located in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Mr. Elias Gaspar presented this case to the Board. Mr. Gaspar stated his name was Elias Gaspar 

and his address was 2612 Poole Av SW. Mr. Gaspar stated he would like to use one room in his 

home for administrative purposes for a painting business. 

 

Mr. Gaspar stated he understood the rules and regulations of a home occupation. 

 

Mr. Bob Sims, Building Department asked Mr. Gaspar about the equipment he would be using 

and verified he did not have any employees coming to his house. 

 

Mr. Gaspar agreed with Mr. Sims that he would not have any employees coming to his house, 

and he would only use typical painting equipment and it would all be stored out of site so the 

neighbors could not see it. 

 

Chair Dean asked for further questions from the Board or the public. 

There were no comments. 

 



 

17 

 

Mr. Collis Stevenson motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Brad Townson seconded 

the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

   

Application and appeal of Christopher Eady / Angela Eady for a 13.5 foot rear yard setback 

variance as allowed in Section 25-10A (2) (d) and as defined in Article VI of the Zoning 

Ordinance in order to add a 14 foot screened in patio at 2910 Legacy Dr. SW, property is located 

in a R-2 Single Family Residential District. 

 

Mr. Christopher Eady presented this case to the Board. Mr. Eady stated his name was 

Christopher Eady and his address was 2910 Legacy Dr. SW. Mr. Eady stated he and his wife are 

requesting a 14-foot variance to add on to the back patio. 

 

Mr. Eady stated that behind his home is a hay field and large power lines so he does not feel that 

anyone would be bothered with them adding onto the patio. 

 

Mr. Eady stated he has spoken with the neighbor to the right and they are fine with the addition if 

they are approved for the variance. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Larry Waye motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Collis Stevenson seconded the 

motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 7 

 

Application and appeal of Howard Morris Builders for a 40-foot side yard setback variance as 

allowed in Section 25-2 and defined in Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance in order to place an 

accessary structure in the side yard at 2105 Woodland St. SE, property is located in a R-1 Single 

Family Residential District. 

 

Mr. Payton Morris presented this case to the Board. Mr. Morris stated he was with Howard 

Morris Builders located at 5519 Indian Hills Rd SE. 

 

Mr. Morris stated he was representing the homeowners, William and Laura Vandiver, and are 

requesting to place an accessory structure in the side yard. 

 

Mr. Morris stated the accessory structure was an afterthought after the addition onto the house 

had been started. 

 

Mr. Morris stated a 40-foot side yard setback was requested to construct a detached garage. 

Mr. Morris stated that the hardship was that 40 feet has been added onto the west side of the 

house and the homeowner wants the new garage to be right off the existing driveway. 



 

18 

 

 

Chair, Dean stated that for the record had the addition not been put on the house prior there 

would not have been a need to request a variance because the garage would be place behind the 

house, Mr. Morris agreed. 

 

Chair, Dean stated that now with the addition the garage will be in the side yard, Mr. Morris 

agreed. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

 

Mr. Brad Townson motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Collis Stevenson seconded 

the motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 

 

CASE NO. 8 

 

Application and appeal of Mid-South Testing, Inc. for one-tenth (.10) foot lot width variance 

from Section 25-10.11 (2) (f) for the following addresses: 

 

 1617 North Street SE 

 1619 North Street SE 

 1621 North Street SE 

 1623 North Street SE 

 1625 North Street SE 

 1627 North Street SE 

 1629 North Street SE 

 1631 North Street SE 

 

Property is located in a R-4 Multifamily Residential District. 

 

Mr. Ron Stroup was representing Mid-South Testing and representing Mr. Eddy Hill the 

property owner.  

 

Mr. Stroup stated that Mr. Hill has purchased the properties listed and wishes to sub-divide these 

properties back to the original lot lines. Mr. Hill stated that these lots are short about 1/10 of a 

foot for each lot.  

 

Mr. Stroup is requesting that each lot be given a variance so that each lot will now be 49.9 foot 

lots. 

 

Chair, Dean asked for questions from the Board or the public. 

 

There were no comments. 

Mr. Larry Waye motioned to approve this case as submitted. Mr. Collis Stevenson seconded the 

motion. On a roll-call vote the motion carried. 



 

19 

 

 

Chair Dean announced that there will not be a BOZA Meeting for the month of December, 

which was announce at the November 30, 2021 meeting as well. The next BOZA Meeting is to 

be held January 25, 2022 at 4:00p.m. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 

 

______________________________ 

Delayne Dean, Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

20 

 

AGENDA  

January 2022 

 

The Board of Zoning Adjustment of the City of Decatur will hold a public meeting in the 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON THE FIRST FLOOR OF City Hall, 402 Lee Street NE, on 

Tuesday, January 25, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. And, also broadcast live on City of Decatur You Tube 

Channel at https://www.youtube.com/c/Cityof DecaturAl for the purpose of hearing the 

following applications and appeals at which time all interested parties are requested to the be 

present and will be given an opportunity to be heard. Questions can also be submitted via email 

at bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov. 

 

CASE NO. 1  

   

Application and appeal of Sherry Painter for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a cleaning service located at 2015 Harrison St 

SE, property is located in a R-2 Single Family Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

   

Application and appeal of Cynthia Martin for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an on-line business for a virtual assistant business located at 416 Hay Dr. 

SW Apt. E8, property is located in a R-4 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 3  

   

Application and appeal of Darneé Clinton for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for an on-line business selling t-shirts located at 

1205 5th Av. SW D4, property is located in a R-4 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 4  

   

Application and appeal of Brandon Garrett for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an a dog breeding business for tea cup yorkies located at 406 11th Av SW, 

property is located in a R-3 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:bozaquestions@decatur-al.gov


 

21 

 

CASE NO. 5 

   

Application and appeal of Deneasia Caudle for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an on-line herbal supplement business locacted at 1606 Tower St SE, 

property is located in a R-4 Multi-family Residential District. 

 

CASE NO. 6 

   

Application and appeal of Michael Sprague for a determination as a use permitted on appeal as 

allowed in Section 25-10 and as defined in Article VI. As amended and adopted, of the Zoning 

Ordinance to operate an administrative office for a mobile locksmith and roadside service 

business located at 1310 Morningside Ct. SE, property is located in a R-2 Single Family 

Residential District. 

 

CASE NO. 7 

   

Application and appeal Frank Gawdun, representing Chick-Fil- A, for an 8 foot 6 inch setback 

variance as allowed in Section 25-21.1 (2) and as defined in Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance 

in order to construct a covered canopy located at 1809 Beltline Rd. SW, property is located in a 

B-4 Regional Shopping Business District. 

 

CASE NO. 8 

 

Application and appeal of Michael Petty for a 22.87 rear yard setback variance as allowed in 

Section 25-10.10 (2)(d) and defined in Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance in order to add 15 feet 

of covered outdoor space from detached garage to house at 1119 8th Av SE, property is located in 

a R-3 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

CASE NO. 9 

 

Application and appeal of Saint Paul’s Lutheran Church for a 22-foot setback variance as 

allowed in Section 25-78 (d) and defined in Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance in order to install 

a new monument type sign located at 1700 Carridale St. SW, property is located in a B-1 Local 

Shopping Business District. 

 

CASE NO. 10 

 

Application and appeal of James and Susan Prince for a 22 foot rear yard setback variance as 

allowed in Section 25-10.9 (2) (d) and defined in Article VI of the Zoning Ordinance in order to 

add an addition onto the back of the existing house located at 1209 Count Mallard Dr. SE 

property is located in a R-2 Single Family Residential Zoning District. 

 

 

 

 



 

22 

 

CASE NO. 11 

 

Application and appeal of Francisco Hernandez for a use permitted on appeal from Section 25-12 

and defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance in order to develop 

R-4 Multi-Family Residential Zoning District uses on the lot located at 928 Sims St. SW, 

property is located in a M-1A Expressway Commercial District. 

 

CASE NO. 12 
 

Application and appeal of Decatur Orthopedics & Sports Medicine from Section 25-78 (d) and 

defined in Article VI, as amended and adopted, of the Zoning Ordinance in order to install two 

signs that does not meet the setback requirements located at 1106 16th Av SE, property is located 

in a MC Medical Center District. 

 



 

23 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 1 2015 HARRISON ST SE 



 

24 

 

 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

25 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

26 

 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 416 HAY DR. APT E8 



 

27 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

28 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

29 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 1205 5TH SW APT D4 



 

30 

 

 
 

 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

31 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

32 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 406 11TH AV SW 



 

33 

 

 
 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

34 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

35 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 5 1606 TOWER ST SE 



 

36 

 

 
 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

37 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

38 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 6 1310 MORNINGSIDE CT SE 



 

39 

 

 
 

 

 

QUESTIONNAIRE 



 

40 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

41 

 

 
 

 

 

CASE NO. 7 1809 BELTLINE RD SW 



 

42 

 

 
 

NARRATIVE PG. 1 



 

43 

 

 
 

NARRATIVE PG. 2 



 

44 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CANOPY INSTALLATION 



 

45 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIDE ENTRY 



 

46 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SITE PLAN 



 

47 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PICTURE 



 

48 

 

 



 

49 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 8 1119 8TH AV SE 



 

50 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SURVEY 



 

51 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SLAB 



 

52 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ELEVATION 



 

53 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ELEVATION 



 

54 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ROOF PITCH 



 

55 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COLUMN PLACEMENT 



 

56 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

57 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 9 1700 CARRIDALE ST. SW 



 

58 

 

 
 

PROPOSED SIGN 



 

59 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CURRENT VIEW 



 

60 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

61 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 10 1209 COUNT MALLARD DR SE 



 

62 

 

 
 

SURVEY 



 

63 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PICTURE 



 

64 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

PICTURE 



 

65 

 

 
 

MAP 



 

66 

 

 
 

CASE NO. 11 928 SIMS ST SW 



 

67 

 

 
 

SURVEY 



 

68 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

BOUNDARY SURVEY 



 

69 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE 



 

70 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE 



 

71 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATE TO CONSOLIDATE 



 

72 

 

 
 

MAP 


